Decatur county Aug. 16, 1847. When twenty-one he engaged in the mercantile siness at Fowlton, which he continued with marked success there until 1805, hen he removed to Woodland. Confiding his mercantile interests largely to be a superior to the presidential campaign of 1892 Mr. Thomas had been an engagement of his brother, Mr. Thomas gives his attention to his utiling the management of his fellow tizens he became dissatisfied with the financial policy of the party, and became a requally ardent worker in the people's party ranks. In company with several hers he became interested in "The Globe," published at Bainbridge, which reprise. Jan. 18, 1882, Mr. Thomas married Beulah H., the accomplished aughter of Lucian Folson, Centerville, Fla. The family of this lady is a branch aughter of Lucian Folson, Centerville, Fla. The family of this lady is a branch of the noted New England Folsons who came to this country from England in the seventeenth century and settled at Hingham, Mass. Mrs. Thomas has in the seventeenth century and settled at Hingham, Mass. Mrs. Thomas has in the possession a genealogical tree showing the numerous branches of the family ribase propriety, that the popular wife of our president, Mrs. Grover leveland, is a member of the same family. Mr. Thomas is a member of the lethodist church and a master Mason.

Por American, is a member of the same tamily. Mr. Thomas is a member of the lethodist church and a master Mason.

NDREW J. TRULOCK, planter, is a member of one of the substantial carly families of Decatur county. The family is of English origin, and first settled in Maryland. The grandfather of Mr. Trulock, Sutton Hines Trulock, came om Maryland to Darlington district, S. C., where he afterward married. With small family he moved to Pulaski county, Ga., where he died. Sutton Hines small family he moved to Pulaski county, Ga., where he died. Sutton Hines small family he moved to Pulaski county, Ga., where he died. Sutton Hines will be small family he moved to Pulaski county, Ga., where he died. Sutton Hines will be small family his brother, J. H., both single, came to Decatur county in 18.50, and will be small family be small family for the small family laws as member of a pioneer family. The oftential owell, born June 7, 1812, who was a member of a pioneer family. The oftential fit is union were: Delia (Mrs. Dr. Elbert Peacock, Cairo, Ga.); Missanul H. Mrs. John T. Harrell, deceased); Gordon B., merchant, Whigham, Ga.; Missanul H. Mrs. John T. Harrell, deceased); Gordon B., merchant, Whigham, Ga.; Missanul H. Mrs. John T. Harrell, deceased); Gordon B., merchant, Whigham, Ga.; Sallie D. merman, Whigham, Ga.; Mary L. (Mrs. J. W. Maxwell, Cairo, Ga.); Sallie D. merman, Whigham, Ga.; Mary L. (Mrs. J. W. Maxwell, Cairo, Ga.); Sallie D. merman, Whigham, Ga.; Mary L. (Mrs. J. W. Maxwell, Cairo, Ga.); Sallie D. merman, Whigham, Ga.; Mary L. (Mrs. J. W. Maxwell, Cairo, Ga.); Sallie D. merman, Whigham, Ga.; Mary L. (Mrs. J. W. Maxwell, Cairo, Ga.); Sallie D. merman, Whigham, Ga.; Mary L. (Mrs. J. W. Maxwell, Cairo, Ga.); Sallie D. merman, Whigham, Ga.; Mary L. (Mrs. J. W. Maxwell, Cairo, Ga.); Sallie D. Mrs. John T. Harrell, deceased of the most advanced and successful planters in dame of the most advanced and successful planters in the county. Nov. 9, 1882, he was married to Sallie J., a daughter of Dr. Henry Martin, a

W. WRIGHT is a prominent and prosperous warehouseman, Brightidge Ga., a citizen who has ever taken a lively interest and exerted all additional and the state of every movement promotive of the advancement if the city of oaks." He is now, and has been since 1870, with a possible interval

a year or so, a member of the board of aldermen, and in 1885-6 was mayor. Mr. Wright is a son of John and Susan (Hoffman) Wright, of Henrico county, Mr. Wright is a son of John and Susan (Hoffman) Wright, of Henrico county, Va., for generations past the home of his ancestors. His parents had five children: Gustavus, farmer, Old Church, Va.; John Henry; Charles (deceased); dren: Gustavus, farmer, Old Church, Va. His father was a merchant W. W., Bainbridge; and George, Old Church, Va. His father was a merchant of early life and later a planter, and died March 17, 1878. His mother died June in early life and later a planter, and died March 17, 1878. His mother died June 30, 1882. W. W. Wright was born Jan. 29, 1844, in Hanover county, Va., and fifth Virginia battalion. His service was mainly about the capital. At the battle fifth Virginia battalion. His service was mainly about the capital. At the battle of Sailor's creek, in April, 1865, he had the misfortune to be captured, and for three months was in the Federal prison at Newport News. Aug. 6, 1873, Mr. Wright was married to Miss Florence (M. Maxwell, and to them have been born four children: Stella V., Florence (deceased), an infant (deceased), and William Wallace. Mr. Wright is a democrat, a Methodist, a Knight of Honor and a member of the Legion of Honor.

DE KALB COUNTY.

JOSEPH H. GREEN, physician and surgeon, Decatur, De Kalb Co., Ga., son of Dr. William and Rebecca F. (Sassnett) Green, was born in Sparta, Hancock county, Jan. 9, 1859. Both parents were natives of Hancock county his mother was a niece of Rev. W. J. Sassnett, D. D., at one time professor at Emory college and later president of Lagrange Female college. Dr. Green received a good common-school education and when eighteen years of age began the study of medicine under his father and later with Dr. R. C. Word. He then attended lectures at the Southern Medical college, Atlanta, from which he graduated in March, 1881. He immediately located in Decatur, and in connection with his practice clerked in a drug store, but the following fall he went to with his practice clerked in a drug store, but the following fall he went to Louisiana and settled in Morehouse parish, where he remained until 1883; his Louisiana and settled in Morehouse parish, where he remained until 1883; his loome ever since. His recognized ability and skill and consequent success have enabled him to secure a liberal share of the patronage of De Kalb county and enabled him to secure a liberal share of the patronage of De Kalb county and vicinity. Few practitioners of his age stand better with the profession or have attained to higher local reputation. Dr. Green married Miss Mollie, daughter of Alexander Little of Richmond, Va., who has borne him three children: Margaret O., Rebecca F. and S. Ulrich. He is a member of the National Union and a Mason, and himself and wife are members of the Presbyterian church. He is stanch democrat.

WASHINGTON J. HOUSTON, retired railway official and farmer, Decatur, De Kalb Co., Ga., son of Oswald and Anna Louise (Shaw) Houston, was born in Abbeville district, Oct. 10, 1831. His parents were of Scotch-Irish and Welsh descent and both were native South Carolinians. Early in life his father migrated from South Carolina to Tennessee, moved thence in 1845 to Savannah, migrated from South Carolina to Tennessee, moved thence in 1846 he moved to Atlanta and engaged in merchandising on Decatur whence in 1846 he moved to Atlanta and engaged in merchandising on Decatur alreys or or near the site of Mr. John Silvey's eight-story building. He built up a large and profitable trade and was prominent in all movements looking to the growth and prosperity of Atlanta, and active in all church and Sunday-school 148

MEMOIRS OF GEORGIA.

work. Soon after Atlanta was chartered as a city he was elected treasurer and was continued in the office a number of years. Mr. Houston began life as drayman and clerk for Mr. Jonathan Norcross soon after coming to Atlanta. His unusual business aptitude—his proficiency and efficiency—were flatteringly evidenced by his having been elected while yet a youth the cashier of the first bank started, and he enjoys the honor of receiving the first deposit ever made in a bank in Atlanta. He left the bank in 1851 and entered the employ of the Georgia railway as assistant agent, since which his active business life has been with railways. He next went to the Western & Atlantic (state) railway under Supt. Wadley and James F. Cooper and remained with it until the second year of Gov. Brown's administration, when he accepted the position of general passenger and freight agent of the Atlanta & West Point railway. In 1876 he resigned and retired to private life on his farm in De Kalb county—finally, as he then thought. But when Supt. G. J. Foreacre assumed the management of the (then) Atlanta & Charlotte Air Line railway he called for Mr. Houston's services as assistant, with the official title of general passenger and ticket agent. While acting in this capacity he was the first to reduce passenger fare from five to three cents per mile, which created no inconsiderable stir in railway circles. When the line became part of the Richmond & Danville system he declined the offer of general passenger agent because it would necessitate his removal to Richmond, but by special request he remained with the system as assistant general passenger agent at this end of the line for a year, and then permanently retired to his farm. Mr. Houston enjoys the distinguished honor of having suggested the organization of the railroad commission of Georgia, the bill for which was draified at his request and pressed forward to adoption by Representative W. R. Rankin of Gordon county. Though urgently pressed by Admiring friends and the press of the stat

DE KALB COUNTY SKETCHES.

595

generous legislation and expenditure for their betterment and extension. He is also an ardent and unflaggingly active worker in the Sunday-school cause. It was he, in connection with Hon. Milton A. Candler and William G. Whidby, who issued the call for a state Sunday-school association, the present grandly beneficent and useful organization being the outcome of that call. He has devoted a quarter of a century of service to the County Sunday-school association as chairman of its executive committee, and has been mainly instrumental in gaining for it the honor of being the banner association in the state. So long-continued and unaffectedly self-sacrificing has been his devotion to this work that he is known to every man, woman and child who annually attend these great gatherings. "I would not exchange the smiles and greetings of these good people," he exclaims, "for all the honors the political field can bestow." In 1868 he bought the old homestead of Dr. Chapman Powell (his wife's father), where, since his retirement from railway business, he has devoted himself to farming and stock-raising. While his neighbors with more experience have criticised his methods, they have been compelled to give him credit for having very greatly improved the live stock in his locality. He prides himself on having a herd of the finest Ayrshire cattle in the United States. Mr. Houston was happily married in 1854 to the second daughter of Dr. Chapman Powell, an old settler and widely-known physician of De Kalb county, who half a century ago represented the county in the general assembly and was a pioneer settler of Atlanta, then Marthasville. He is a member of the Scotch-Irish society of the United States, a member of the Pioneer Citizens society of Atlanta, a member of Atlanta lodge No. 59, F. & A. M., and was the first person exalted to the royal arch degree in Atlanta after the chapter was removed from Decatur to Atlanta, and is a prominent and influential member of the Presbyterian church, of which he was recently elected an elde

elected an elder, after having served forty years as a deacon.

A SBURY SMITH MAYSON, physician and surgeon, Decatur, De Kalb Co., Ga., son of James L. and Lucinda (Douglas) Mayson, was born in De Kalb (now Fulton) county, May 21, 1836. His parents were natives of South Carolina and his father was a farmer and railway contractor. He died in 1881. Dr. Mayson received his primary education in the common schools of the county and was graduated from Emory college, Oxford, Ga. He began the study of medicine under the preceptorship of Dr. James F. Alexander, one of the most eminent physicians of Atlanta, then entered the Atlanta Medical college, from which he was graduated in 1857. Subsequently he took a course at Bellevue hospital at New York. He located at Powder Springs, Cobb Co., Ga.; afterward moved to Acworth, same county, whence, a year later, he moved to Decatur, where he located permanently, establishing an excellent reputation as a practitioner and a large and remunerative practice. He entered the Confederate service in May, 1861; was at the burning of Harper's Ferry, participated in the first battle of Manassas and was afterward made hospital steward. He was soon promoted and made assistant surgeon, and in May, 1862, was commissioned as hospital surgeon. He was present at the battle of Chickamauga, and those between there and Kennesaw Mountain. He was afterward at Andersonville, and was at Atlanta at the time of the surrender. He is a member of the Georgia Medical association, of which he was one of the organizers. Dr. Mayson was married March 9, 1858, to Miss Rebecca, daughter of Dr. L. K. Catlen of Powder Springs, who has borne him four children, one of whom only is now living: Lena R., wife of Dr. W. P. Smith, druggist, Atlanta, Ga. Dr. Mayson and his wife are exemplary members of the Methodist church of long standing.

WILLIAM MASON RAGSDALE, county ordinary, Decatur, De Kalb Co., HOR of Elijah N. and Caroline (Born) Ragsdale, was born in De Kalb county, Nov. 30, 1855. His parents were born in what is now De Kalb county, and are aged, respectively, seventy-nine and seventy-seven years. He received a good pres paratory education, and, after leaving college, attended lectures in the law departs ment of the university of Georgia, at Athens, from which he graduated in 1879. Among the members of his class were John J. Strickland, S. Morris, and Hooper Alexander. After he graduated, he settled in Atlanta, but remained there only two years. He then located at Stone Mountain, where he practiced with encouraging success until January, 1889, when he was elected ordinary of the county, and has been continuously re-elected since. He was the editor and publisher of the first newspaper published in Decatur, "The De Kalb News," which he sold after running it a year. He is well posted, genial, affable, and popular with his fellow-citizens. Mr. Ragsdale was married Jan. 27, 1882, to Miss Bartie C. daughter of Benjamin F. Veal, a popular and prosperous merchant of Stone Mountain, by whom he has had three children: Louise, Benjamin E., and William M., Jr. He is a member of the Royal Arcanum, and himself and wife are members of the Methodist church.

GEORGE A. RAMSPECK, fertilizer manufacturer, Decatur, De Kalb Co., Ga., son of George P. and Charlotte R. (Lewis) Ramspeck, was born near Petersburg, Va., March I, 1841. His father was a native of Frankfort-on-the-Main, and emigrated to the United States and settled in Virginia when a young man. He owned and conducted a farm near Petersburg, in which city he was engaged in merchandising. He was highly educated, and could write and speak three other languages besides his own. In 1853 he left Virginia and came to South Carolina with the intention of settling in Charleston, but took the yellow fever, and died in Savannah that year. Mr. Ramspeck's mother was born in Prince George county, Va., and was a daughter of Joseph Lewis of revolutionary fame. Mr. Ramspeck's education was limited—he received none after he was eleven years old. When twelve years of age he was apprenticed to A. J. Burke, a book and job printer in Charleston, until he reached maturity. But in December, 1860, he entered the state service as a member of the Chichester Zouaves, which became a part of First regiment, South Carolina Rifles. He later was a member of the battery of Capt. Stevens, who fired the first gun of the war, Jan. 9, 1861, on the occasion of firing on the "Star of the West," in its attempt to land supplies at Fort Sumter. He was engaged in the coast-defense service on Sullivan's and Morris' islands, etc., for some time. Falling from the ramparts of Castle Pinckney, Charleston harbor, while mounting a gun, he was permanently disabled and discharged from the service. In response to a telegram from J. J. Toon, of the Franklin Publishing company, he came to Atlanta July 1, 1862, and accepted a place at \$15 a week. At the close of the war he found himself the possessor of \$50,000 in Confederate money. Immediately after hearing of Gen. Lee's surrender he went to Griffin, where he exchanged it for goods which he brought in a one-horse wagon to Atlanta, realizing about \$200 on them. In company with J. C. Rogers and M. T. Castleberry he constructed the first building erected-near the corner of Whitehall and Mitchell streets, and nearly opposite what is known as "Dodd's Corner," where they sold the first goods brought over the Georgia railway, and sold in Atlanta after the war. This enterprise proved very successful and profitable. Later he withdrew from the firm and settled permanently in Decatur, where he believed he could handle his capital to better advantage, but principally on account of his wife's health. He engaged at once in general merchandising, which he continued until 1890 with exceptional success and prosperity. Since retiring from mercantile life he has devoted himself to farming and the manufacture of fertilizers. He has established for himself an enviable reputation for business sagacity and enterprise, and financial ability, and accumulated a large property. He has been elected and served two terms as mayor of Decatur; is a stockholder in the Donald Prazier school for boys; one of the trustees of the Decatur Male and Female academy, and a member of the board of county commissioners. Mr. Ramspeck academy, and a member of the board of county commissioners. Mr. Ramspeck son, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Charleston, S. C., who died Dec. 28, 1865, leaving one child—Elizason, of Cha

DODGE COUNTY.

W. ASHBURN, a native of North Carolina, was born Nov. 26, 1838, and reared on the old family plantation in Surry county, that state. His education was limited, though he obtained a fair business training and was sufficiently equipped for life's battle to discharge creditably a clerical position he was holding in a mercantile firm, when the war broke out. He then enlisted in the Twentyfirst North Carolina regiment, in which he served for about two years, when he was promoted to Gen. Early's staff as courier and scout, and in this capacity he served until the close of the war. He participated in the following battles: Fredericksburg, Chancellorsville, Winchester, Cedartown, Gettysburg, Plymouth, N. C., and was in a number of skirmishes during Jackson's and Early's raids in the valley of Virginia. He was wounded in the battle of Plymouth, N. C., and was near the immortal Lee on the day of his surrender at Appomattox. He returned to his old home about the middle of April, 1865, and on May 16, was married to Miss Anna P. Atkinson, the daughter of Johnson Atkinson, of Caswell county, N. C., Mr. Ashburn and Miss Atkinson having been engaged for the last two or three years of the war. Mr. Ashburn was then without resources, save a small tract of unimproved land in Surry county, N. C. He at once set to work improving this land, and there laid the foundation of a very successful business life. In 1868 he engaged in buying and selling tobacco and stock in South Carolina and Georgia, and in this way he found the "piney woods" or, as he maintains, the "garden spot" of Georgia. His family remained in North Carolina until the year 1871, and he then brought them to Eastman, Ga., where he located and commenced a mercantile business. In this and purchasing timber lands, he continued for ten or twelve years. About the year 1882, he commenced the manufacture of naval stores and lumber, and this business he conducted for five or six years with great success. During this time Mr. Ashburn had become the owner of large tracts of lands, which he determined to hold for farming purposes, selling the timber, as well as his manufacturing interests. He then turned his attention to a general real estate business, buying and selling timber and farm lands, and city and town lots, and this has been handled with marked success.